Consolidated Balance Sheet

o A =
mEEERER
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-)N\F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FEx FEx
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights + Hb {5 A 6 - 1,892
Property, plant and equipment Y2 B MR E 7 149,072 151,788
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 8 5,073 -
Intangible assets B EE 9 4,746 8,566
Long-term prepayments and RHATE HIB R
other receivables H fh fE W SR IE 14 2,897 725
Investments in an associate REtEa R a2 E 11 6,020 6,119
Total non-current assets EARBEEHLE 167,808 169,090
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 13 95,828 91,102
Trade receivables JEWE 5 BR 5K 14 29,511 33,151
Prepayments and other receivables TE T RIE R
H {th fE W 5k IB 14 15,975 13,585
Amount due from a related party JEWBRAEALIIE  34(d) 954 1,191
Current income tax recoverable EHIRR B AMEH - 1,241
Structured bank deposits HEIBERITER 15 2,293 8,888
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER R
and pledged bank deposits HHRIBTER 15 15,980 15,342
Cash and cash equivalents RELBEEED 15 41,127 34,215
Total current assets REBEEAE 201,668 198,715
Total assets EERE 369,476 367,805
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners AAREBAELER
of the Company
Share capital N 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves & 17 272,286 271,128
287,514 286,356
Non-controlling interest FEFE IR A 213 326
Total equity R 287,727 286,682
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HReEEAER
As at 31 December
Hn+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-AF —ET-N\F
Note Us$’000 us$'o00
M2 FEx FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings %Efﬂﬁ% 19 15,376 15,697
Lease liabilities HEaE 8 3,016 -
Deferred income tax liabilities mkﬁﬁ BHRAas 20 2,705 3,238
Retirement benefit obligations RABHEE 29 1,414 1,478
Long-term environmental provision RHIRIBRH 18 444 387
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELAE 22,955 20,800
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables BB SER 18 12,784 20,875
Accruals and other payables FEstER KR
H h & < 718 18 18,816 16,874
Amounts due to related parties JENBREALRE  34(d) 1,351 1,391
Bank borrowings RITIEE 19 24,748 20,469
Lease liabilities HEaE 8 111 -
Current income tax liabilities ENEARTE i 8 & 984 714
Total current liabilities REEERE 58,794 60,323
Total liabilities =REECR 81,749 81,123
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEHE 369,476 367,805
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction Hifr e EEABEREERBRANGE—OE -

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 221 were HRFI22E21BZHAMBRREN ==
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020 and were ZF=ZA -+ BEEEFSER-ITHTIAL

signed on its behalf. REHE
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

BRI i

Director Director

EZE EZE
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Consolidated Income Statement

mElmER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—BLEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
M 3E SFEER FET
Revenue W 25 5,21 357,857 356,772
Cost of sales iz k=D 23 (291,292) (289,274)
Gross profit EF 66,565 67,498
Other gains — net H Wz — ¥ 5 22 1,093 459
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DA 23 (25,081) (23,117)
Administrative expenses THF X 23 (22,618) (22,974)
Operating profit KR 19,959 21,866
Finance income B U A 871 929
Finance costs B W (918) (832)
Finance (costs)/income — net B () A
—F# 24 (47) 97
Share of post-tax (loss)/profit of JE{EEE DR BT E
an associate (B8, %5 11 (99) 44
Profit before income tax R AT 5 B AT & F 19,813 22,007
Income tax expense PR 5 i A 2 25 (4,228) (4,613)
Profit for the year REERF 15,585 17,394
Profit attributable to: AT &FERRR:
Owners of the Company PANNESIEZ RN 15,563 14,285
Non-controlling interest FEPE IR HE A 22 3,109
15,585 17,394
Earnings per share for profit KAREEABEER
attributable to the owners of BAZERER
the Company during the year (ABREMWIR)
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share BREXER 27 1.02 0.94
Diluted earnings per share SREBHEER 27 1.02 0.94

The above consolidated income statement should be read in b4 A YRR K fEE R AR o — HFRIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—BLEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FE
Profit for the year REERF 15,585 17,394
Other comprehensive loss: Hitt2EEIE:
Item that may be reclassified to B EEBm oA
profit or loss
Release of exchange reserve upon HE BB ARRRRZ
disposal of a subsidiary FE X, R (3.707) -
Currency translation differences [EHZ%E (576) (2,013)
Other comprehensive loss AEERBAHEM2EER
for the year, net of tax (4,283) (2,013)
Total comprehensive income FFEXHRALE
for the year 11,302 15,381
Total comprehensive income UTEFEEARFERZEA
for the year attributable to: WA#BEE:
— Owners of the Company A VNEIE Z DN 11,280 12,228
— Non-controlling interest — IR E S 22 3,153
Total comprehensive income TEEXARALE
for the year 11,302 15,381

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

=
2

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

op

T W e 5K B 52 [R) AR B B o — DF B AE o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAFEEAELR
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest equity
Rx  RGEE EXRHE  AHRE  iERE  REERA ai FRRER  EH2R

US$000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000
TR T TR TR TEL TEL TEL TR TET

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\&E

—A-A2EH 15,228 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583
Comprehensive income 2EKBA
Profit for the year AEEET - - - - S8 14285 3109 17,39
Other comprehensive income/ HEt2ERA/ (BB)

(loss)

Currency translation differences ERzE - - (2,057) - - - (2,057) 4 (2,013)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EM A/ (F8) A8 - - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228 3,153 15,381

Total transactions with owners AREAZERSE
Dividends (Note 26) & & (Hs26) - - - - - (11,282) (11,282) - (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reverse ENRELTRE - - - - 45 (45) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F

+ZA=t-Az&8% 15,228 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 286,356 326 286,682

Balance at 1 January 2019 WZZ-nE-A-AzEH 15,228 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 286,356 326 286,682
Comprehensive income 2EKBA
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - 15,563 15,563 n 15,585
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EESE
Release of exchange reserve upon HE-HREARR

disposal of a subsidiary BRERGE - - (3,707) - - - (3,707) - (3,707)
Currency translation differences EAER - - (576) - - - (576) - (576)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 27 (B8) /MABE - - (4,283) - - 15,563 11,280 Y] 11,302

Total transactions with owners ~ EEFAZERSE
Non-controlling interest for disposal ~ HE—FIHBAFZ

of a subsidiary (Note 35) FmRER (H35) - - - - - - - (105) (105)
Dividends (Note 26) T8 (HzE26) - - - - - (101220 (10,122) - (10122
Dividend payable to non-controlling N —EMERE 2

interest of a subsidiary FERERZRE - - - - - - - (30) (30)

Balance at 31 December 2019 RZB-hE&E
+-B=t-Az&H# 15,228 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 287,514 213 287,727

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be — bifi4R& #E 25 & B3k fE & R AR RART 7F — GHEIE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERIRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—RHBLEE

2019 2018
S —E=— %
Note us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FE
Cash flows from operating activities REXBEECZRERE
Cash generated from operations EBELEZRSE 31(a) 28,135 29,456
Interest paid 2 FE (1,107) (1,106)
Income taxes paid EFTEH (3,372) (3,116)
Net cash generated from operating KREEBEEZ R FE
activities 23,656 25,234
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELEZRESRE
Purchases of property, BEYE WELEE
plant and equipment (16,561) (23,636)
Proceeds from disposal of LEME BWE R
property, plant and equipment B2 TS RUA 31(a) 3 86
Proceeds from disposal of HEREHEZ
assets held-for-sale BEZSRIAE - 411
Purchases of intangible assets BEEMEE 9 (5) -
(Increase)/decrease in short-term bank HMERITER R
deposits and pledged bank deposits BERRITFER
(&) R (638) 721
Decrease/(increase) in structured bank ERMRITER
deposits wA () 6,595 (4,985)
Interest received =& 534 888
Investment in an associate i *é" AlzRE 11 - (2,520)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFAZREFE (10,072) (29,035)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHELEZRERE
Dividends paid 2R’ E 26 (10,122) (11,282)
Proceeds from bank borrowings fﬁfﬂﬁgﬁﬁgﬁk 59,715 48,045
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (55,807) (47,269)
Principal elements of lease payment MENRZEZKH (324) -
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBRAZ
R R (6,538) (10,506)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRREEEY
cash equivalents #in, CRd) BE 7,046 (14,307)
Cash and cash equivalents REINZRE R
at beginning of year REeEEY 15 34,215 49,679
Exchange losses on cash and RekBReEEY2
cash equivalents R BB (134) (1,157)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZEER
at end of year HeEEY 15 41,127 34,215
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LilifFAIRE&REREERBRBME—HHE-

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Annual Report 2019 3 127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate ("MSG"),
soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and chemical products in
Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and several European
countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Second
Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the group consisting of Vedan International (Holdings)
Limited and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the structured bank deposits
measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUBERTFESHBREE (M\)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEE(F)

RAEMEBEVBRELENGEE
PHEBRRFEEARTEEN G
et - MEREERMAALEE 2S5
BEBEPIREZEHAE - F RS
EHET AR 2 SES - SRR A
AHEAMBREAMEBEAZH

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the B A M R4 15 5 o
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
(a)  New standards, amendments to standards and (a) FEER®ZFER - ERZ

interpretation adopted by the Group EET AR 2 FE
REEBR-_Z—NF—A—H
Fs 2 IR ERE & REEAAT
N A B B o BN 2 FAER
BRERREAZIBEIAR:

The Group has applied the following new
standards, interpretation and amendments to
standards which are mandatory for the Company
for the first time for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2019:

Annual Annual Improvements “E-tFrz —T-0EE
Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle FEREEE Z—T—tF8
Project 2017 B FEYE

HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, BRGHER  HEBIT BERX
(Amendment) Curtailment or Settlement £19% #i5

(BFTK)

HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in EHEEN REEAAK

(Amendment) Associates and Joint £285 RERER
Ventures (EFTK) REER
HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BAMKRE AEERENRE
(Amendment) Negative Compensation EREIH Bl
CCHES
HKFRS 16 Leases FERBRE HE
ARIE16%5%
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B8 (BBHE  EHEE2TE
Treatments REREZE  EME
2)£235

RNEBU SIS L FE 1657
ZRBHNHITE2.2 - inH A
FA] MRS RTAE A R e B 0 4
S5 74 H 9 = A1) 5 AT A TR A
EREATE-

Impact on the adoption of HKFRS 16 are set out in
Note 2.2. The adoption of other new and amended
standards and interpretation did not have any
material impact on the current period or any prior
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REUBERTIEGHBFREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(FH)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to (b) VLR F B AR R R E

standards have been issued, but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2019
and have not been early adopted.

— LA — A — H B 16 < B BAR
JE AR LR I AR IR AR 2O
L) VR Q) 2 B RT A

Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after

RT3 AEH
ZERBZ
FEHBEX

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
(Amendments)
EB G EAFE 1R R BRHEE
BB ERESNR
(1BETA)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of Business
BB wEERNZEINR XBHEE
SCHEN)
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract
BAMBREENE1T5R REE 4
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture
BBV BREENEI0% R REFEEBE QRN

BB G R 52855 EEPECHNEELEITE
(BFTA)

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting

“E-N\EUBRELER BITUBRESHEER

The directors of the Company have assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption
of the above new standards and amendments
to standards. There are no new and amended
standards that are not yet effective and that would
be expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions. The Group intends to adopt the
above new standards and amendments to standards
when they become effective.
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1 January 2020

—E-TF—HF—H

1 January 2020
—E-TF—-HA—H

1 January 2021
—E-—F—HfF—H
To be determined

e =

FHEE

1 January 2020
—E-ZTF—-A—AH

RRREFD AR L5
A RER BT AREAEH
LB E  EERERRTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 "Leases” on the Group’s financial statements and
discloses the new accounting policies that have been
applied from 1 January 2019.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group have adopted
HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has
not restated comparative for the 2018 reporting period,
as permitted under the simplified transition approach in
the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing standards are therefore
recognised in the opening consolidated balance sheet on
1 January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,

“Leases”.

discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
as at 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities
on 1 January 2019 was 2.83%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the entity
recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset and
lease liability immediately before transition as the carrying
amount of the right of use asset and the lease liability at
the date of initial application. The measurement principles
of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that date. The
remeasurements to the lease liabilities were recognised as
adjustments to the related right-of-use assets immediately
after the date of initial application.

2

RREERFEGRREE (])

2.2

BRREED
AMEREERATEN B RE LD
F1eW [HE | BAEEHBHR 2
FE WEBEEEET-NEFE—A—
B e Z & et R -

ol XM EE2 P AREE A
T-NEF-A-HEEPRANEE
B R a2 A E 165 - BIRIE AR
PRI T AP SU R REF
—NFHREHENLERET - I
it BEERRELEZEHN D
HER-T-NF—A— HE@ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
HEEERABRTHER-

%?%%W%?%E!M‘%#&%@EE'J%M?E

CAREBREMBIBEETR G E
E'J%Wfﬁ (EMEINRASER K
EEEINEHERREERR
BEREENTHENRETE
Ifiﬁﬁ%%ﬁ)\ﬁ’\ff NFE—H—
EE’Ji ERFRAEETHR - ERA

—ET-NF-A-HAZHEEAE
ZbDﬁﬁ$ﬁEKfﬂ/\%§%?ﬂf‘J$Z%
2.83% °

[y
R E

MM BRAREEREZHENS -
ERRERBENKEHEEE A
ERBZRHEERRAREAREE
FHEABRERERAHZKE
B HEYBHRELNF16RZAE
RAENZARRER -HEAEZ
BN EREREERER R MK
RBEEEAEEEZ AR

Annual Report 2019 3% 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

° the use of a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

o reliance on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous;

o the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months
as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;
and

3 the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of
initial application. Instead, for contracts entered
into before the transition date, the Group relied on
its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HKFRIC
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUBERTFESHBREE (M\)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.2 GitEBREH (F)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

(i) HEREZFE

Us$'000
FEx
Operating lease commitments RZE-—N\F+ZA=1+T—HEEZ
disclosed as at 31 December LT E R
2018 3,219
Less: short-term leases recognised B RESEIEARMNI CEHES
on a straight-line basis as
expenses (423)
Operating lease liabilities RZE-NF+ZA=+—HERAZ
before discounting as at KEHERE
31 December 2018 2,796
Discounted using the lessee’s RERERABEBEAABEAZEEER
incremental borrowing rate of MERPFEER -_ZE—HhFE—HF—H
at the date of initial application BRZHEEBE
and lease liabilities recognised
as at 1 January 2019 2,481
Of which are: Hem:
Current lease liabilities nBHEaE 166
Non-current lease liabilities RBHEEAE 2,315
2,481
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY BREERTETHRREE (]/)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

N

(continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 22 ETtERE2H (F)
(i) Measurement of right-of-use assets (i) (EHEEEZTE
The associated right-of-use assets were measured HEACAEEERSRANES
at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted BEZEENE WEEER
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease ZE-NF-A—RAZEESA
payments relating to that lease recognised in the BERERZEE Z EAEMNK
balance sheet as at 1 January 2019. There were no R HEN RSB ARE - BE
onerous lease contracts that would have required 1SERE R ER B AR ER
an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date BEEZEBEBERLD-
of initial application.
(iv)  Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on (iv) RZF—NF—A—HZEE

1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the balance sheet on 1 January
2019.

o Land use right — decreased by US$1,892,000

o Right-of-use assets — increased by
UsS$4,373,000

. Lease liabilities (current portion) — increased

by US$166,000

o Lease liabilities (non-current portion) —
increased by US$2,315,000

There is no impact on retained earnings on 1
January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.
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REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.4), or financial
asset (Note 2.11). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2

RREERFEGRREE (])

23 KMEBAT (&)
23148 (&)

(a)

(@]

EBabt (&)

SEARFMRZS &
ik EEARRER
HZARBRRRG T Y
WoRFBERR B REM
BEEmEENRNEL
EE BAKRERER
MEHH - MEHE M
BARZHMzEREME
HAE NEAEEZ
BAFBE B

WEERIEGRES 2
MEBAREEEERE
#
SRR R dE T M AN
UMK EEHEZR
D AEIEEER S
ENEBEARBERATND
ETZR G -EFEN
REZATFEEARHS
NEEEFEREER
REzZHBNEZE®
Mg AR - [ 3F 12 X
BambEzB8ETINR
VN

HEKE A

il 2N 55 [ 71 5 4% 75 12 6
BERZERZEM
REB I AG R R =1L
BEBHREQAFEEN
AE OMEEAEZSA
REZFPER - LHEHE
ABRS|VERE & A A (I
H2.A) R BEE (H
A2 A1) ZIREBEZREM
FAFEEVRER
o th oh -+ 22 AT A E b
EEBARNBEREZE
BEBZANSEZRE
MAEECEEHESR
BMEEXBEZHFAA
BReamm Bk ERA
FHEMEEmBARNER
ZPeHENMHOEER

N2
s

/|

o

E

Annual Report 2019 3% 137



BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments.
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Cost also includes

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4

2.5

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.
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AR

B BRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net

investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other

gains—net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
(continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains—net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTIEGHHFEERE (R)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.8 Intangible assets 28 BIEEE
(a)  Goodwill (a)  EE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries EERKBNEARRFES
represents the excess of the consideration WA FTE R R (E R E R
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling A FEIE B R A LA R BT R
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair WU EE 2 IR w U B
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree Bz A FEBEFIKRENE
over the fair value of the identified net assets FEEFEAFEZHE-
acquired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RETRERF REBEH
acquired in a business combination is allocated P EE DO EFERE
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), BRAE RN E 2 & RIS
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the BN ([HRBeEA]) K
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of —HERAE S EMN - FE DA
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents BBy —HENAELR
the lowest level within the entity at which the RABERERHE 2 &KE
goodwill is monitored for internal management H-BERLED I EMmET
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating B
segment level.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken FEGFHETRERS TE
annually or more frequently if events or changes REEHHERLBERLEBET
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. AlRE IR R ER - L B
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the A - EEREERENKE S
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value (A ABEREN T ERE
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any ERAZREE)ELE-F
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense MR ERERARAX  BX
and is not subsequently reversed. B AgRE -
(b)  Trademarks and license b) EIEERERE
Separately acquired trademarks and the license, BBRERFERFHRZE LW
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost 8 2 PR K hB RR AR B AR R 5T
less accumulated amortisation and impairment B RO ERBEAR BHET
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight- FABEGETE UBEER
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and IR AR ENFETFIE
license over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 TR A FENEIT DR
years.
(c) Computer software (c) ZESEAM

BANERDFERIRERE
R {58 P B2 s FE BRI P SI RE BV AKX
KRB - BRI E R
A RERAF -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’'s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.13),
amount due from a related party, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2.14) in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group’s financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss comprises structured
bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUBERTFESHBREE (M\)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

210 BIHEE (&)
2101 22 (&)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.1 Classification (continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and REEEREBREZSEEY
only when its business model for managing those EBEANLREHREENSE
assets changes. BBEKRE -

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition 2.102 AR K 45 UF TSR

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.
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REMBHRRWE

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERIEGHBREE(H)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued) 2.10 B &EE (&)
2.10.3 Measurement (continued) 2103 it & (#&)

Debt instruments (continued) BEBHITA (&)

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for . ERAFEFARZ T
amortised cost or at fair value through other HEBENALRAT
comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured Bt A2 EBRAE
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment EZBEDNEAFER
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is ABHHE-ERER
recognised in profit or loss and presented net FEFABRTEZE
within other gains/(losses) in the period in BRE 2 BHKEER
which it arises. BEaRER TEEEH

IR HE e (E18)
MEAFEZ5

2.10.4 Impairment 2,104 J#1&

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis REERBEREETHEEE
the expected credit losses associated with its BHER A BR 2 B T A8
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The ZEHEEEBE -FERZR
impairment methodology applied depends on EREETEERBEEEAXN
whether there has been a significant increase in 8 35 00 i 5E © M FE3.1(b) ¥ it
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group rEEETEEERRBREGTEAXN
determines whether there has been a significant =R 1ol Bz~

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the RERZEZHERME A5 H
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which FEFRE BB 5 E R F 5%
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised RFFZ BT E BERERT
from initial recognition of the receivables. FHEREWFIBRERIER 2
HEtE -

For other receivables, short-term loan to an FEAERRIE 45 THEE R
associate and amount due from a related party, the A EHERREREEEA
impairment provision is determined based on the TIZREME OREREDIR
12-month expected credit losses. B1R2EAEHEEREEE
When measuring expected credit loss, the Group REEEHREFEEBSER ~&
considers both historical default rate and forward- B RSB E LA EE
looking information. Ko
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mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

The Group has no offsetting financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2018 and
2019.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.

2

RREERFEGRREE (])

2.1

2.12

2.13

HESHMITA

MHBEERBBEERAETRZE
BSEHCHRRSERNBERFEE
EEEARAREREERFEEAR
B TIARE BRFHEANGEEE
BERAIIR - A EORE S IT 2
FMAET AT BURNARIREM - BMA
ARARBRE FHHAEELB
B URRBEHBEZOEN &
NEBEHBEZBERTEHIT

AEBRRBE_ZT-N\FRIE
—NF+ A=t -HZHEEERE
BERALEREER T A

FE
FEARA B IR FERENR
EE AR o AN T 1R & -
R MERBRABERYE &
BEAT HtEEKATEELEES
BUAEEERTHE) ETRE
EERA - A B IRFEZ N B E XS
PO EBRERMNIFETEHE
PSR E -

HRERHAFET  LERMETS
S ES TR

P E 5 MR R H B W R TR
FEULE 5 iR 3R e E A JE W SRR A 25
BATERR RRABRANEER
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REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2.19

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company’s subsidiaries
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

2.19

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUBERTFESHBREE (M\)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.18 Borrowing costs 2.18 BER A

Wi EEXLEREREE (FE
BEREITAIEREREREEN
EE)BEREAN —REFBEEEK
REHARSEENKE BEEEE
AR EAMEREMR G HERILE-

AEEMEER A EREES HHE
RIS TER -

EHRIEEREHR

HAMBHRAXRERERES R
ERE R O A PTS T R IR AV EE AR
B AFER BT - A BT ST K
RERZERKEARBBEEMR
MIRERREER BEZEHAE-

() EHFFH

EHFAERAXDREEAR
B ARRIMB LR REE R
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REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERTFETHBREE (M|)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

219 EMIRELREH (F)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUBERTFESHBREE (M\)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

219 EMIRELREHR (HF)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

(b)

EETZH (&)
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REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERTFETHBREE (M|)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued) 220 EEER (F)

(a)  Pension obligations (continued) (a) RUKZEMT (&)
The current service cost of a defined benefit plan, RirelmKx Nz IE SR
recognised in the consolidated income statement in X R 2 R R R E BN EA
employee benefit expense, except where included BRA R A (R A B ER A E B
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the N R F Z (& B RIS P
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee EZRERBMEFEN B
service in the current year, benefit changes, B BB NAER -
curtailments and settlements.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in 8 7 AR 75 K A B B 7E 18 5
profit or loss. Ao
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays RRAEHRRGTEMES  A5H
contributions to publicly or privately administered MBAERARBEER 2R
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, RARBR ET BIE & & - & 893k
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no B R R R AT KR
further payment obligations once the contributions REEBFEAEMAREEH#
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as FREB R ERAEER
employee benefit expense when they are due. PR

(b)  Termination benefits (b)  AUFHEF

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RREERFEGRREE (])

(continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

2.21

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

220 EEEF (&)

2.21
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.22 Revenue and other income recognition

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the product
has transferred, being when the product is on board
for delivery, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for

acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days,

which is consistent with market practice.

No contract liability and right to the returned goods
are recognised as insignificant amount of returns
are expected based on previous experience.

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is

due.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective

interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUBERTFESHBREE (M\)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.23 Leases 2.23 HE

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the impact
of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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REMBHRRWE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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AR

B BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.24

2.25

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants do
not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and all
attached condition were complied by the Group, they
are recognised under “other gains—net” in consolidated
income statement upon receipt of the grants.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong and Renminbi
against US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations, which the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

At 31 December 2019, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$1,442,000 (2018: US$663,000) lower/
higher (2018: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

At 31 December 2019, if the Renminbi had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$21,000 (2018: US$6,000) higher/lower
(2018: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of non-Renminbi-denominated trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other payables in subsidiaries
which use RMB as functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a)  Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$28,908,000 (2018: US$21,349,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$11,216,000
(2018: US$14,817,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2019,
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/

if interest rates on

lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$123,000 (2018: US$91,000) lower/higher
(2018: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, loan to an associate,
other receivables and amount due from a related

party.

(i) Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, loan to
an associate, other receivables and amount
due from a related party included in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to these financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2019 and 2018, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 15 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

(i) Impairment of financial assets
While structured bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade

receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days

past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2019
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP of the
countries in which it sells its goods to be the
most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected

changes in this factor.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by customers is not significant.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade

receivables is assessed to be close to zero.
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REMBHRRWE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2019
or 1 January 2019 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 H¥EEREZ (E)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) FEREE (&

MHEERME (&)

FEW B 5 R ()

EHEELF R -F
- h&E+=ZA=+—H
EkZZ-NF+_-A
=tT-HZEKRESK
RAEENEEZBIEE

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i)
Trade receivables (continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31

December 2019 and 31 December 2018

was determined as follows for both trade

receivables and contract assets:

BIHEFEWNT
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZE-NE b K ki
31 December 2019 tZA=t-A D& 121808 1812360R  #i8360R ait
Expected loss rate BHERX 0.01% 0.22% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount BEEE
~ trade receivables -ERESER
(US§'000) (F£7) 7,940 21,432 233 394 29,999
Loss allowance (US$'000) BERE (TEL) 1 47 46 394 488
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
—T-)\f ki ki ke
31 December 2018 t-A=1-8 101 121808 181Z360H 2183608 At
Expected loss rate BHERX 0.01% 0.23% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount BEEE
~ trade receivables -ERE SRR
(US$'000) (%) 28,129 4818 272 430 33,649
Loss allowance (US$'000) BERE (Tx1) 3 11 54 430 498
As at 31 December 2019, the loss allowances RZZTE—-—NLF+ZA
for trade receivables were US$488,000 (2018: =+—H EKRESE

US$498,000). Management are of opinion
that that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other receivables, loan to an associate and

amount due from a related party

The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is zero.

(c)  Liquidity risk

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERREHE(HE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BMEEREBERE (&)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) () wnHEzERE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial THRIBIEEEBEE L EH
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based Hea THRESAEE 2B E
on the remaining period at the balance sheet B AHEBIHAERNETY
date to the contractual maturity date. The M-REBEHEBEZEEASE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HARMBRBRERE -

undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years  Over 5 years Total
-£R -EEWE MEZLF BBREE &t
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Tn FEn FEn TER Tin
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
t-A=t-A
Bank borrowings (Note) RITRE (M) 25,371 4,563 10,081 1,866 41,881
Lease liabilities (Note) RERE (H:T) 198 282 1,128 2,319 3,927
Trade payables LS 12,784 - - - 12,784
Other payables and accruals ~ EftEMFELEAER 8,585 - - - 8,585
Amount due to a related party JEFT A EE A+ 3E 1,351 - - - 1,351
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
t-A=t-A
Bank borrowings (Note) RITREE (M) 21,007 8,280 8,340 - 37,627
Trade payables ENEHER 20,875 - - 20,875
Other payables and accruals ~ EftEMFELEAER 7,056 - - - 7,056
Amounts due to related parties [E(IBEEA LA 1,391 - - - 1,391
Note: BfsE -
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings EHEHBEEHESEHAME
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TEERHERERNZFE
3.2 Capital management 3.2 EXEHE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to REBEBRESZBEARERE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going B BB FERELELE 2 A
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders BRRTERE®E AERHE
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an KA ARERFE B2 EAREEIA
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. WA B R o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BT HBSARENGEE  ~&EET
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to REABIRMN FREZERESSE Mk
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new BEAN BIIHRMIEEELE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. LURB B BT ©

Annual Report 2019 3% 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total
borrowings include non-current bank borrowings, current
borrowings, non-current lease liabilities and current lease
liabilities.

During 2019, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2018, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were
as follows:

3

MERRETE (&)

3.2

EXEE (F)

HERNHEMAR—E AEEAEE
BELXAERERER R X
BAEEERBBERMRZAEERRN
BAEAERTE REBEBEIFRY
RITEE RPBE FFRPEER
ERRBHEEEE-

RIZE-—NF AEEZERE_-T
—NFRMNEER N DHEFE
EBBLEREGEKF -RZT—N
FR-ZZE-N\F+=ZA=+—8B2

EEBEBLENT:

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Total borrowings BIEE 43,251 36,166
Owners' equity (including non- A AR (BIEIA

controlling interest in equity) w2 IR E R 287,727 286,682

Gearing ratio BEAELE 15.0% 12.6%

The gearing ratio increased from 12.6% to 15.0%
following the adoption of HKFRS16 Leases. Both net debt
and gross assets increased following the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on 1 January 2019.
See Notes 2.2 for further information.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, prepayments, amount due from
a related party, structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposit and pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, amount due to a related party and trade
and other payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values because of their short maturities. The carrying
value of the long-term other receivables approximates its
fair value as it was estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(1)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed

MERRER (F)
3.3 AFEMGE (F)
() RFEER

7 10 [ H2 1 E X B TS SR AR
AVEEBNGFENERTA
B R SFAE B 1 e A B R ik
e RBHEEATEMAS
ABBH A SRS AEE
REMEAREREERTA
DER/=EER-

under the accounting standards.

Level 2
-~
Us$'000
FEx
Recurring fair value measurements AEEERFEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H
Financial assets B EE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ A FEFABENHEEE
profit or loss 2,293
Recurring fair value measurements AEMNFEE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-—N\F+=ZA=+—H
Financial assets BMBEE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ A FEAABZHNHKEE
profit or loss 8,888
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REMBHRRWE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
There were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

168 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk f}BIES ($23%) AR A 7

3

BERBRER (&)

3.3 DFEMGH (&)
FRAFEFENTRELZEL
M| o

AEENBEANREHRERR
FEEBRNEARE L -

E—H RERTHEENSRIA
(PIIN 2B B E P74 T AR
%) O AFERIEE S BARAOTHH
B3 - AR 08 B A T P
S REARITEAE - HETA
SHAE—

B WFRERTISEEN DR

TR (PIGIMTET E) W RFE

REMETEEE ZSHETER

ENAABEMSBIEME KA

ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%°@ﬂ%*@@lﬂ
$E%%%%EEK%A%T
mﬁﬁ AlZEemMIAAS

4 o

B=R: AR EE AR AR
WIHERABMENSEE - ARTA
HAE=M-
EE e Hst R AE
fi B e 1 2 PRI PR S 0 B L 4 R
ZR{THE BEESERTAERAE
ZARKEHE

REE S ARRAE LR RERER - RIBE

EE ARFLZEHERHSE D Bk
EREEER- - TXH®AEBKEBREYET

*WﬁifWéF&EﬁZ%ﬁ@#ﬁE
RBBZHF RRE& -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 9).

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam, Cambodia and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Functional currency

The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group's entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgement.

4

EESsH AR RAER (1)

(a)

(b)

(c)

B R R E
AEBSFEHRBHE2 MMM E
FTECRAARTE  AABBR T HIRMA
Al » BRERIR & B A U2 & 58
BRBEREBETE FTHRREFER
SRR AT R HE (KIFE9) »

B SR RIELERSH

AEBEABMTE B RERR
BIEHFTEN - RIEE 2RISR
HRENEER  AREAFLEX
HE - FFZ X5 Rt BB A RS
FERBEMIGER - REBAMGFR
KB BMBRINGIR iR T8
NG EREECET HWRZEEE
ZREMBERAENDAR 2 &R
TR ZEEZRETERBETHN
ZEBRERASREERAR:

HWERBERR/RRERRBNA T
PRELHHEREEZRXTIABRE
B RlgmRRs TESEEEF0H
ZREFSHEERHERRE - HE
HgEREREZ AR FREZR
SHERAELRES 2 MANE
RMAEERABHAX 2ERE
R E -

HEEEM

AEEEERBZNEEBCERE
ZERREMEZIERERINE
B EBAAEESBERIZELR
AR ZRE EERFERIH

o

L
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REMBHRRWE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The Group
presents its operating segment results (below), based on the
information reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,
and used to make strategic decisions. This information includes
segment revenue, segment capital expenditure, segment assets,
segment non-current assets, other than financial instruments,
and segment liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments, and segment liabilities are
based on the geographical location of the assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment and product nature. Accordingly, the segment
performance is restricted to revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$39,526,000 (2018:
US$43,301,000) is derived from a single external customer
located in Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA
segment. No other customers individually contribute 10% or
more of the Group's revenue (2018: same).

SEHEH
FTEEEARECHERTRBANITES -
BITESEHAEE 2 BR R E R AR %
RERDEER - NEERBEE2ER
FEMEHLAREIERBAELERE
FIEEDMEE (RTX) - WEEHBRE
Dl ABERLZL HWEE \ﬁB
IRBEE (R TERIN RosfaE

IT2EERARETIENNIBEEEOME
%o A E D B R EE 2 MARE - DR
HAEPHREMRE D DEHEAZH -

DEMEE - NHERBEE (M TARK
S E SRR BRIAEER B EMELE

e

)&ﬁﬁ%IEETE%i‘@E/‘*Eﬁﬁ?
EZH& s REMEBFHRE Bt
MRIRERAMEEHR -

W H 49639,526,000% T (— T — N\
F 143,301,000 L) BRE A A 28—
INIFRF - RIS R AWK AR
H-pmEMmELPBEEEMASERE R E
10% %A E(ZE—N\F:MHR) -

(a) Segment revenue (a) oWWKE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
UsS$'000 us$'000
FEx FET

By geographical location: BB EE D
Vietnam jigea) 177,635 177,753
Japan =N 64,820 63,015
The PRC e 43,669 39,004
America EH 21,394 20,327
Taiwan B 16,734 17,335

ASEAN member countries RHKE

(other than Vietnam) (TBEBE) 26,857 31,593
Other regions H b i & 6,748 7,745
357,857 356,772
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mEMBHRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue (continued)

SERE ()
(a) 2EBukzs ()

5]

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —T—)N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Timing of revenue recognition Uy 25 7 TR B
At a point in time RE— BRI 357,857 356,772
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities BE B EERZ W
The Group receives payments from certain customers AEEREITEHABERE TER
in advance of the performance under the contracts. ZTERFE e TRERA AN RS

The following table shows how much of the revenue

RzUmBFEANABE AR

recognised in the current reporting period relates to [Eo
carried-forward contract liabilities.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
F%Ex FEx
Revenue recognised that was FFAFENBEESRZ
included in the contract liabilities BRI A
balance at the beginning of
the year 1,993 1,296
(b) Capital expenditures (b) EAERZH
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam jizgea) 17,548 25,396
The PRC i 221 121
Cambodia RIS - 3
17,769 25,520
Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on BARY H TR E E R w5 e
where the assets are located. EEDH -
Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant BEALHBEREAEME BE LXK
and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. H T ERELREEEE-
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mEMERRHE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEEHE(#E)
Assets (o0 ¥E
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Us$'000 us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam g 312,728 308,623
The PRC e 42,797 45,544
Hong Kong BE 10,972 12,358
Taiwan B 2,599 704
Singapore Fronig 236 487
Cambodia RIFE 144 89
Total assets per consolidated GEBEEREBEXRMAT
balance sheet BERE 369,476 367,805
Total assets are attributed to segments based on where BEAEBENHRBEEEMRE TS AR
the assets are located. EEDEBo

Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the
management at the operating segment level. The
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation,
impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense

WE -BELRBHEEENEED
BEEER -UTRSEEDIHIIE
MEBEEME WE - RE SN
B Mg S AR (B18) 8 F

and share of (loss)/profit of an associate for each B2 o
operating segment.
Impairment Share of
Amortisation of non- (loss)/profit
and current Income tax of an
depreciation asset expense associate
FRBEE EiaEE AT
BERITE WE  MEREX (BB R8H
Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
T=rn FTxr TErn Txrn
2019 —E2-NEF
Vietnam R 19,832 - 4,092 (99)
The PRC HF 683 3,580 134 -
Others Hif 1 - 2 -
20,516 3,580 4,228 (99)
2018 —E-NF
Vietnam fiogE) 17,648 - 4,361 44
The PRC H 965 - 242 -
Others EAf - - 10 -
18,613 - 4,613 44
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mEMBHRME

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d)

(e)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments,

5

SEHEH(#E)

(d) BUBBSZFRBEE (ERMITA

by location: BRob) :
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam HE 152,205 151,333
The PRC F 12,704 17,029
Cambodia R 2 3
Total R 164,911 168,365
Liabilities (e) &fE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
UsS$’000 Us$'000
TXx FET
Vietnam HE 70,792 72,860
The PRC F 4,451 3,751
Hong Kong BE 4,444 3,338
Taiwan =) 1,993 1,108
Singapore s 48 46
Cambodia R 21 20
Total liabilities per consolidated FEEEBREXRMT
balance sheet BERTE 81,749 81,123
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REMBHRRWE

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

Tt E R 48
AEBRTEREZ EREEEENZ
BN RE EREFESTAT

2019 2018

—E-h#EF —ZT-N\F

us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FEx

At 1 January w—A—H 1,892 2,042

Amortisation of land use rights (Note 23) 3 50 A R 4

(Hi5E23) = (52)

Exchange differences EHZ%E - (98)
Reclassification to right-of-use asset ENOREGRAEEE

(Note 2.2) (Kt3E2.2) (1,892) -

At 31 December R+—A=+—8 — 1,892

In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Xiamen Vedan Foods
Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan"”), subsidiaries established and operating
in the PRC, have each been granted rights to use the land by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in 2042
and 2060, respectively.

Amortisation of land use rights has been charged in
administrative expenses.
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mEMBHRME

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 VR - BEREME
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
HEIR nE  BEREH RE BROERHE &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
T TET FET TET T FET
At 1 January 2018 R-B-NE-F—-H
Cost BA 11,356 107,730 447,891 9,199 19,393 595,569
Accumulated depreciation 2:E - (73,155) (347,945) (6,825) (17,825) (445,750)
Accumulated impairment 2itRE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-EZ-N\%
+ZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNEADFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Additions RE 22,628 152 1,875 410 455 25,520
Transfer B3 (15,332) 1,868 13,272 - 192 -
Disposals (Note 31) & (FiFE31) - (30) (436) (5) (1) (512)
Depreciation (Note 23) & (Fi:E23) - (3,386) (14,114) (583) (346) (18,429)
Exchange differences EHRESE (1 (305) (79) (15) 3) (403)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-NF+ZA=+-H
Cost RA 18,651 108,862 460,387 9,322 19,749 616,971
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (75,988) (359,923) (7,141) (17,924) (460,976)
Accumulated impairment 25tRE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount FHFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-h%
+=A=+-BLEFE
Opening net book amount FOEEFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
Additions RE 14,548 7 1,616 873 456 17,764
Transfer HE (7,223) 598 6,328 - 297 -
Disposals (Note 31) & (H331) - (24) (79) (6) 7 (116)
Depreciation (Note 23) e (HF23) - (3,023) (16,265) (560) (396) (20,244)
Exchange differences ERZEE - (93) 21 4) ) (120)
Closing net book amount FREADFE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
At 31 December 2019 R-E-AF+=-A=t-H
Cost BA 25,976 108,080 463,110 9,857 20,160 627,183
Accumulated depreciation 25t E - (77,477) (371,067) (7,373) (17,987) (473,904)
Accumulated impairment 2ERE - (1,100 (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount BEFE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
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REMBHRRWE

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

Depreciation expense of US$19,142,000 (2018:
US$17,220,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$258,000
(2018: US$267,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$844,000 (2018: US$942,000) in administrative expenses.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$283,000 (2018: US$274,000) on qualifying

VE - BERSRME (/E)

WE R £19,142,0005% T (Z & — N\ F:
17,220,000 J0) ~ 258,000kt (=&
— J\%F :267,0003 7T ) &844,000% T
(= — )\ :942,000% 7T) B 5 B 4
B HE R RS LA RIT R X
Bk~

FRC AEBERAEREENEERXK
78283,0003% ¢ (=& — J\ 4 : 274,000

assets. TC)BFTRE AR o
8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY 8 FHHEREREEAR
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance (i) REECEEEBRERNSE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following GEEEBEREFIINTHEES
amounts relating to leases: Bkl A-Cl
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-NF —E-NEF
+=—H=+—H —A—H
us$’000 us$'000
P FET
Land use rights + b fE 1,812 1,892
Leasehold lands HE T 1,796 1,965
Building BF 1,458 507
Equipment B 7 9
Total right-of-use assets EHAEEEER 5,073 4,373
Current lease liabilities mEBHEAE 111 166
Non-current lease liabilities RBAEERE 3,016 2,315
Total lease liabilities HEABERE 3,127 2,481

Here is the movement of right of use assets for the year:

FAERBEEENEFHWT

2019

—E-NF

Us$'000

FET

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 4,373
Addition for the year FRRNE 1,426
Termination of contract during the year FREIEEH (550)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets i FAHE & A 1 o (145)
Exchange differences [E H Z%E (31)
At 31 December Bn+=Z—A=+—8 5,073
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mEMBHRME

8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

8 FHRRERHERARKE)

(ii)

REEREREINESHE

FAWRERHIINTRESEHEN
TR

aH

2019 2018
=E-hEF —ZT-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
F%Ex FEx
Amortisation charged of ERAEEEN
right-of-use assets: EHBRE
Land use rights 4 b 49 -
Leasehold lands ME L 82 -
Building BF 13 -
Equipment B 1 -
145 -
Interest expense (included in FBHX
finance cost) (Gt AR ) 94 -
Expense relating to short-term leases R EHIFAEH B
(included in cost of goods sold and (FFABEEEREAR
administrative expenses) THFEX) 30 -
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was —E-NEFHENRESRLLAER
US$354,000. 354,000t ©
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (iii) *EENEHETBIRAREETH

accounted for

The Group leases various leasehold lands, buildings and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 5 to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

ZIE
FEEEEZHEEELH BFRR
w-HERNBEIALERTFHN
] 7E B BR o T B T A Bl E T E 15
7 B AR N ) B A6 R B R A
78 & 19 % 30 B A0 AE AT 22 A (I
HMAMBAEREEEMRMRERLR
) IEHEBEENSREEENR
e
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S A -
FEMBHmKRME
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 \|EE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
HE BUhRER [k &t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn TEx TEn
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE-N§-H—-H
Cost A 8,492 2,008 12,189 22,689
Accumulated amortisation EHE§i - (1,512) (12,107) (13,619)
Net book amount REFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_E-N\F
+ZA=1+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOREZE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Amortisation charge (Note 23) B (M:23) - (122) (10) (132)
Exchange differences iR AT (372) - - (372)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=t-H
Cost 2% 8,120 2,008 12,189 22,317
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEH - (1,634) (12,117) (13,751)
Net book amount REFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-N%
+=A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNREEE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Amortisation charge (Note 23) B (Ma23) - (117) (9) (126)
Additions wRE - 5 - 5
Impairment loss (Note 9) REEE (FiF9) (3,580) - - (3,580)
Exchange differences EHEE (119) - - (119)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 4,421 262 63 4,746
At 31 December 2019 R-B-AE+=-A=1+-H
Cost A 8,001 2,013 12,189 22,203
Accumulated amortisation REr#H - (1,751) (12,126) (13,877)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (3,580) - - (3,580)
Net book amount REEE 4,421 262 63 4,746

Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses.
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mEMBHRME

BERE (#)
R ER A

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to HMEDNREBEAEESES IO EEHRIA

operating segment. B
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
PRI R WA
HEER el st
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FET FET F=T
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+=ZA=+—8 3,691 730 4,421
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—-NE+ZA=+—H 7,390 730 8,120

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and the fair value less cost
of disposal ("FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). As management considered the recoverable amount
under the VIU method to be higher, the recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined based on VIU calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by management and approved by the Board
of Directors covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond the
five years period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG related
business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of
the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows.

EEERBEAERDER S EM ([HRIGR
SEMDWEREE ([EREEER
FEBREEXRAR ([RFEBRBEKRA])
MEFHNRSEEETTRESE - HRE
BERREMREETNETHIRESER
= E AR £ B 2 P E & RR T A
AEERBEZTAEE %ZFAEER
ENEEERELRESTERHEZTRSF
HMBRBEESHZBHARSRERRE
T BEAFHZREREERUTHE
Pz ERHEREEE (ER) - BREXA
RN e BT EE 2 RIEERE
BRRMFEIERE.

ARG ETBEKIGHBRBR 2B HE
ZERBEEZIEZRRW T

The PRC
Gy

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-NF

Growth rate in sales volume HESHRX 2.1%-5% -11%-6.3%

Growth rate in sales price HEEERE 0%-2.5% 0%-7.4%

Gross margin EHME 17.4%-21.3% 12.9%-27.5%
Other operating costs per annum BF A& EKAR

(US$'000) (F=EmT) 1,966-2,113 2,005-2,297

Long term growth rate RHERX 3% 3%

Discount rate BRIR X 14.8% 15.0%
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REMBHRRWE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’'s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on VIU calculation is
lower than its carrying value and therefore a provision for
impairment of goodwill of US$3.58 million was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2019. A decrease in annual
sales volume growth rate of 32%, a decrease in annual sales
price growth rate of 1%, a decrease in gross margin of 3%, an
increase in annual operating costs of 2%, a fall in long term
growth rate of 18% or an increase in discount rate of 23%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

10 MEBLE
THBAR-E-—AF+-A=+-A2F

10 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2019:

EfBARIEE:

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of  ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
ERAL/ LB AEEREL FEREEEEZ
£B NREEERER TEERREEHE BRT/HRRAHE EBR LA EERLA
Directly held:
EERE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US§1 each
Winball Investment Limited BRELHES EEEREER 100R BREBIETH
([ZBRREER]) LRk
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. RERAHES ERBRAER 100R G REEIEZTH
LAk
Indirectly held:
HERE:
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. s EHMRERERR 61,109,0005% 7T L&k
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. g EH IR A ER 20,177,000% T £ B
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 167,871,967 Ordinary 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical shares of US$1 each
products and cassava starch-based
industrial products including MSG,
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
WA (M) RHERAR #E EHBEERHERHRRAMA £ 167,871,967RER
ERRAERNIZER BEKE AEIETH
ARE FURH FERE RIR LEk
HRTHA
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and US$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
LERACEERAR HE- ErEBERHEERE BRORER 9,800,000% T
ARERRR AR EMEXR
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and US$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
EFFARRERAR PE- ERBBEREERE BHRER 20,270,000% 7T
ARELRR Elge] HMER
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
ERARELOESERAA E- ERBERAZENTXER 254,000% T
AREARAR FMER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food additives  Registered capital of Riels 100% -
and biochemical products and cassava 2,640,000,000
starch-based industrial products in
Cambodia and for export
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd RE NREEUERERAMIE EER  FHEAE2640,000,000
RAZRRIZERHERLD i

BE-S-AE+-A=T—BIEEE-
AREHEHRUEFRABEREERA
RELE SR R B DR

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
all its equity interests in Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise
Co., Ltd.. For details, please refer to note 35.
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REMBHRRWE

11

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows:

RBEEQRZRRE
R DR ZREZBHWT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FE

As at 1 January w—A—H 6,119 3,555
Capital contribution to an associate M ARNEE (M)

(note) - 2,520

Share of post-tax (loss)/profit of JE(REEE R RIBRFLE
an associate (B8, &7 (99) 44
As at 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8H 6,020 6,119

Note:

There was a capital contribution of US$2,520,000 to an associate
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The capital contribution
was made in proportion to the Group’s shareholding in the associate
and accordingly there is no change in the percentage of Group's
shareholding in the associate after capital contribution for the year.

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December

2019 and 2018:

Bt -

RBE-Z— \F+-_A=1+—BIEEYH
— &1 Bt 4 A F)71 & 2,520,0003E 7T ° J1 & Jh IR AN
EERBEAT ZRELLIEL AR ER
FEB O RBEARIZBREASLBESS-

%

B RER-B-NFTZA=T—

B REERRZERELEMT

Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=y R WAETES BERTRAFE KFEEZE% FERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMRER R AR A A 21,027,559 T A% 2 %

EE1ETTZ B

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development

in Vietnam.

ZHERNRIEZNUEREFMERR -

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and
there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 (2018:
US$112,000) in relation to the Group's investment in the
associate.
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mEMBEmRME
11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 11 REBEATSZERE (#)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information MBEERBEHER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—A—BZEEFE 20,396 11,850
Increase in share capital A& A< 38 hn - 8,400
Profit for the year F R F (329) 146
Net assets as at 31 December RTZBA=1+—RHZEEFE 20,067 20,396
Interest in an associate (30%) REEE R F 2 2 (30%) 6,020 6,119
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12 RENBSZ&MIRA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets at amortised cost RBERANTEBZHHEE
- Long-term other receivables — R B H {th fE W SR IE 472 725
— Trade receivables —EKE FHERR 29,511 33,151
— Other receivables — current portion — — E b fE UK FXIE — BN EAEE & 2,813 2,719
— Amount due from a related party — e EREE AL RIE 954 1,191
— Short-term bank deposits and —EERIT IR R E L
pledged bank deposits BITHER 15,980 15,342
— Cash and cash equivalents -RBeMReEEY 41,127 34,215
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFABHZZHEEE
profit or loss
— Structured bank deposits —EBERITHER 2,293 8,888
Financial liabilities at amortised cost — ZEHEKR AT EZ T HEE
— Trade payables —“ERESER 12,784 20,875
— Other payables and accruals —Hib B RIERERE A 8,585 7,056
— Amounts due to related parties —JERBREEA LT RIA 1,351 1,391
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 40,124 36,166
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REMBRRMEE
13 INVENTORIES 13 #K
2019 2018
—E2-NF —ZE-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Consumables JEFE M@ 5,875 7,184
Raw materials JR# #Y 48,688 48,078
Work in progress & 4,199 5,692
Finished goods SR R 37,293 30,468
96,055 91,422
Less: Provision for impairment losses on B FEREEEEE
inventories (227) (320)
95,828 91,102

The cost of inventories of US$234,769,000 (2018:
US$238,143,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included

in cost of sales amounted to US$7,000 (2018: US$30,000) and
US$93,000 (2018: US$400,000), respectively.
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mEMBHRME

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BRRHIERRAMERRET
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx F=ET
Trade receivables from third parties ERE=ZFE SRR 29,999 33,649
Less: loss allowance B EERE (488) (498)
Trade receivables—net EWESER-FHE 29,511 33,151
Prepayments a1 5RIA 14,362 9,672
VAT recoverable A] Uy [ $ {E 7 1,068 1,194
Other receivables H b U RIAE 3,320 3,324
Loan to an associate (Note (b)) BTYBERAZER
(H 5 (b)) 122 120
48,383 47,461
Less: non-current portion of prepayments & : T8 {5 FUIA K E b E UL
and other receivables FRIB 2 FEBNEAE (2,897) (725)
Current portion B #A B 45,486 46,736
The carrying values of the Group's trade receivables REEEWE SRR ZREABELE RN TE
approximate their fair values. HE-
Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the TE I £ 2R B R AR TE A RO AR
purchase of raw materials. The non-current portion of other B-RZZE-N\FE+_A=+—80 HM
receivables as at 31 December 2018 include the outstanding FEUGRIE 2 JEBNER S0 o B 15 A R 1 &) &F
balance in relation to the disposal of Ha Tinh plant (Note 24). ME Z AU E TR TE 5 65 (FEsE24) -
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REMBHRRWE

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period
to certain customers and it is subject to the satisfactory results
of credit assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based

on invoice date is as follows:

14 BERZERRAMBUHKRIET (§)

BRESZERZEEHUN FERNERE
60K - AEFEAAETEFPREBREEER
H MEXBRREEFHZmEHER B
WEZRFIRERABMZREROTAT

2019 2018

=E-hEF —E-)N\F

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FErx

0 - 30 days 0E30K 21,622 21,372
31 - 90 days 31290k 6,906 10,870
91 - 180 days 912180k 697 789
181 - 365 days 1812365k 354 251
Over 365 days 365K A == 420 367
29,999 33,649

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair

values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2018 and
2019 are the carrying amounts of trade receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

ERABEKFIAZEREE  HREE
R REERNFEMESE -

RZE-NFRZZE-NF+=—A=+—
HAEBZ &N EERR A LIE 5 EUGK
HZ REE - AEE W BT EEAIKTR
YEHE 48 -

e E 5 Rk B E b e M R TR 2 BR (B 4R
TIEEEE:

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —ZE-)N\F

US$°000 US$'000

FEx FEx

Vietnam Dong MEE 20,958 19,680
us$ ETT 15,714 18,453
New Taiwan dollar e = 16
Renminbi AR 8,878 5,407
Others Hih 2,833 3,905
48,383 47,461
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mEMBHRME

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

14 BRRZERRAMERRE (&)

Loss allowance of trade receivables () EREZERZEBRERE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to NEEERABBMBREERENR
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime bR st B EEEE  RAE
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. FEWE 5 R A 2 BA T8 B 5 18 1%
1o
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 RZZE—-—hF+ZA=+—HZEH
December 2019 reconciles to the opening loss allowance SRWRIB FREEBHEFY
as follows: BERBEHROT
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERT FET
Opening loss allowance R—A—BZFH
as at 1 January IR 498 511
Decrease in loss allowance RERNGFEE WA EF
recognised in consolidated Rz BEEER D
income statement during the year (10) (13)
Closing loss allowance WR+—A=+—Hz
as at 31 December EREERE 488 498
The creation of provision for impaired receivables BERERKFIEELNBED T
have been included in administrative expenses in the ANGREWRETWITEASZ A - B
consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to the BRHBRE SR —MRIBAEEKE
allowance account are generally written off when there is EEZR M-
no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do FENE 5 BR 3K I ot FE WK IE A1 2
not contain impaired assets. HEANTTREDREEE-
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet REER e EERBE FlEiE
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable Bl FEM AR TR 2 BRTEI (A © AR R B W R 5
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral St AR mEE A
as security.
Loan to an associate (b) #HTF—EBHEQIRNZEN

As at 31 December 2019, there is a loan to an associate
of US$122,000 (2018: US$120,000) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and
due for repayment on 21 May 2021.

R-_ZT—hE+—_fA=+—H 47T
—EEE R F 2 B35 A122,000E T

—ZE— \5F:120,000E 7T ") %
REAEERA RFHRIEFE
WETHE TEAR-_ZE=-—FHA
—+—HEE-
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REMBHRRWE

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15 BHERFSEFRY BHEERTE
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS R EHBRTFRRCHEHHBTER
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
T FET
Short-term bank deposits with original REBHBERBRBE=TAZ

maturity over three months RHRITER 12,166 15,342

Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) BEMIBITHER
(FFEE(a)) 3,814 -

Structured bank deposits (note (b)) ERMEIRITER
(FMFEE(D)) 2,293 8,888
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 41,127 34,215
59,400 58,445

As at 31 December 2019, cash at bank of US$40,962,000
(2018: US$34,003,000) and bank deposits of US$18,273,000
(2018: US$24,230,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts of
US$10,661,000 (2018: US$14,950,000) and Vietnam bank
accounts of US$43,469,000 (2018: US$38,864,000) is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese
governments.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and structured bank deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

RoE—hE+=-_A=+—8 477
8 £40,962,000F L (= &F— \F:
34,003,000 jt) & R 1717 518,273,000
=7t (=Z— )\ % : 24,230,000 7T ) E &
EERRK -

FEH AR ERITIRS < & 410,661,000 7T

— T — )\ :14,950,0005 7T ) & [& H #
BRTTER P 2 & £43,469,000% L (=&
— J\4F : 38,864,000 L) ZBEFH B &
4R BT /9 SNEEE B Il e

AEBzRERREEEY HHMRTHE
RREBERITERIRATEEE:

2019 2018

—E-NF —E—N\F

US$’000 Us$'000

F =5 FEx

Vietnam Dong MEE 28,560 18,733
us$ e 18,102 24,526
Renminbi AR 10,704 14,845
Hong Kong dollar BT 89 91
New Taiwan dollar e 1,944 247
Others HAith 1 3
59,400 58,445
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mEMBHRME

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end

16

15 BeRASER/Y HHUEBTE
R EHBETERRCHEHFRTER

(%)

RIBEMR AEE 2 ERFH R0

of the reporting period were as follows: I
2019 2018
F - —E—N\fE
Short-term bank deposits with original REBHBRBBE=TAZ
maturity over three months RHERITER 6.1% 5.8%
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) EEHRTER
As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank balances RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H &%
amounting to US$3,814,000 (2018: Nil) were deposited E /Y RTT 45 $473,814,000( L (=&
at designated bank accounts in certain banks as —N\F B)MEAREEREPER
guarantee deposits for certain letter of credits released to WETERENERERFENE T
the Group's customers. RITHIRERITERS
(b) Structured bank deposits (b) #BEHBITER
As at 31 December 2019, the structured bank deposits R-ZZE—hAhF+_A=+—8 &
amounting to US$2,293,000 (2018: US$8,888,000) 1% 18R 1717 3%2,293,000% 70 (= F
investments in wealth management products issued by — J\4F :8,888,000%F 1) AR IR1T
banks. Changes in fair value of these investments were BITHEMEMNKE ZERED
recongised in “other gains-net” in the consolidated NP EEHRRE R RERR E
income statement. fb 4 & — FEE ] o
SHARE CAPITAL 16 B=*

Authorised ordinary shares

EEEER
Par value Number
us$ of shares USs$’000
HEXET BRHEE FEr
At 1 January 2018, RZE-N\F—A—B8"
31 December 2018, —E-N\F+=-A=+—8"
1 January 2019 and —E-hE-HA-BRk
31 December 2019 —T-NFE+ZA=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
ERTRBREER
Par value Number
uss$ of shares Uss$’000
HEXT BRHEE FTEr
At 1 January 2018, RZZE-N\F—A—H"
31 December 2018, “E-N\F+-_A=+—H"
1 January 2019 and —ZET-NAF-A—HBK
31 December 2019 —E-NFE+ZA=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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REMBHRRWE

17 RESERVES 17 GEfs

Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained

Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve earnings Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
ROEE EXRE AHREE  EERE  REEA Ch

(@)  (HEb)
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET T TET TET T

At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-N\F—H—H 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 270,182
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Profit for the year KEFHF - - - - 14,285 14,285
Other comprehensive loss Hit2HER
Currency translation differences & i %78 - (2,057) - - - (2,057)
Total comprehensive income  ZHEKAHE - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228
Total transactions with BEBAZBRZE

owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) BHRE (fi526) - - - - (11,282) (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reserve  E AL E A E FE - - - 45 (45) -
At 31 December 2018 RZIZ-N\%F

+-A=+—H 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 271,128

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—-N&—A—H 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 271,128
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year KEFHF - - - - 15,563 15,563
Other comprehensive loss Htt2EEHE
Currency translation differences  [E 3 5 - (576) - - - (576)
Release of exchange reserve HE—HHB LR

upon disposal of a subsidiary FRELEE - (3,707) - - - (3,707)
Total comprehensive income 2EHKAAE - (4,283) - - 15,563 11,280
Total transactions with BEBAZERSE

owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) BABRE (HE26) - - - - (10,122) (10,122)
At 31 December 2019 N\ZE-NE

+-A=+—H 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 272,286
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mEMBHRME

17 RESERVES (continued)

17 f%fE (48)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.

Statutory reserve

The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.

M EE

(a)

(b)

aptEE

AEENSHRERERBEN _ZTT_F
TZAZ T RATRNEESEAEMKE
B /8 2 A Y S AN T M e B A0 Vi (B R AR
AIMETRAM BT 2 BRAEENZR -

RERE
FEARARRARFENZI10%EEE
AHEE HEARSERARGMERZ
50% ° KRB E SEEATEEA T
B A LUK REr B A Rl &
KN-BIRABBARSAEFNA R M
BEARFZEL25% °

18 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 18 BHESES EHBEERXMER
PAYABLES %1E
2019 2018
=E-hEF —ZT-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Non-current FEENER
Long-term environmental provision RHRBRE 444 387
Current IR
Trade payables T E 5 8RR 12,784 20,875
Accruals fEst & A 8,240 8,567
Payable of purchase of property, EREEME BER
N . S5 BE K Th
plant and equipment and = AF DA B SR SR AR AN FRIR
construction costs 3,437 2,517
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) SR8 E (@) 2,506 1,993
Other payables E fth & T 5RIA 4,633 3,797
31,600 37,749
Total trade payables, accruals and ENB KR B ER
Eo &
other payables R A FE S R AR R 32,044 38,136
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e MR
18 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 18 BFEZER BHEBEAREMEM
PAYABLES (continued) %XIE (#8)

E-NF+-A=+—H EBNES
/TAH@‘*TEI HIZ BREQIAT

At 31 December 2019, the ageing of trade payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

2019 2018

—EB-NF —ET-)N\F

us$’000 US$'000

FEx FEx

0 — 30 days 030K 11,976 19,232
31 - 90 days 31290K 808 1,634
91 - 180 days 91E 180K - -
181 - 365 days 1812365k - -
Over 365 days 365K A I - 9
12,784 20,875

AEBZENBSER BT ERREAM
FER IR 2 BREER T 5 88T E

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

2019 2018
—E-RF —E-N\F
us$'000 us$'000
SFEETR FET
Vietnam Dong WEE 9,382 19,569
us$ e 14,467 14,561
New Taiwan Dollar e 21 1,091
Renminbi AR 8,019 2,709
Euro BT - 22
Others ) 155 184
32,044 38,136

(a) Contract liabilities (a) EHERE

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits ERHBBEFEERINTERPZE
or payments received in advance for sales of goods not uuﬁé}’%Ziﬁ\HﬁZ&%YH ﬁ?ﬁ lh&n
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when REBRNTEFPRERER

goods are delivered to customers.
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mEMBEmRME
19 BANK BORROWINGS 19 H|ITESH
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Non-current IF BN AR
- Long-term bank borrowings — —RERITER
secured —FHE A 18,213 19,189
- Long-term bank borrowings — —RERITER
unsecured — R 6,912 7,804
Less: current portion of long-term A RERITIERZ
bank borrowings BNEAES 9 (9,749) (11,296)
15,376 15,697
Current Bl &R
— Short-term bank borrowings — R HRITIE K
— secured — B 8,892 6,352
— Short-term bank borrowings —REHRITER
- unsecured — K 6,107 2,821
— Current portion of long-term —RERITIERZ
bank borrowings — secured BVEAZE > — AR 7,347 8,950
— Current portion of long-term —RERITIERZ
bank borrowings — unsecured BVERED 75 — 3K 2,402 2,346
24,748 20,469
Total bank borrowings RITEERRE 40,124 36,166
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REMBRRMEE
19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19 SMITHE (])
At 31 December 2019, the Group's bank borrowings were RZZE-—NAF+ZA=+—08 x5EZ
repayable as follows: BITEHEENATHEES:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FTEx FEx
Within 1 year —FR 24,748 20,469
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 4,394 7,966
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 9,361 7,731
Over 5 years AFEMNRE 1,621 -
40,124 36,166
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate RBERR AEEEBEEMEENNEE
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the BRENEFRITERPRET :
reporting period are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FTHEx FEx
Within 6 months 6fE A X 18,921 14,183
Between 7 and 12 months 721218 A 4,645 5,104
Between 1 and 5 years 1254 14,937 16,879
Over 5 years SELAE 1,621 -
40,124 36,166

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate AEBEEZREELAEL QN FERE

their fair values.
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r e A R AR

19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

MITHEE (H])
RBERR REBEE 2 BRFNE
T~

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

us$ ETT 2.6% 2.6%
New Taiwan dollar et 2.0% -

The carrying amounts of the Group's
denominated in the following currencies:

borrowings are

FEBBEZRAERATE®E:

2019 2018
—E2-NF —N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FE
uss$ X 38,131 36,166
New Taiwan dollar e 1,993 -
40,124 36,166
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REBEBUTRIZEABERE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FER FEx
Floating rate: R
— Expiring within one year — R —F R EH 104,916 75,584
— Expiring beyond one year — R —F1& 5 Hf 33,734 32,419
Fixed rate: EB
— Expiring within one year —R—FREH 474 -
— Expiring beyond one year —R—FEIH 9,299 -
148,423 108,003

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$193,516,000 (2018:
US$144,169,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and
other general banking facilities. Unutilized amount as at
31 December 2019 amounted to US$148,423,000 (2018:
Us$108,003,000).

The Group’s bank borrowings of US$28,548,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: US$25,541,000) were secured by
corporate guarantees issued by the Company.

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H £&H
A H¥EAH RBBA193,516,000% 7T 2 8817
nﬁé(*"—)\i 144,169,000 7T ) 1E
BIRTEE ESMAREM—RRITH
BophZE— n¢+ A=+—8 %8
&% 5148,423,000% T (=& — \F :
108,003,000% 7T ) ©

AEBEBRZ_ZTE-—NLF+=_A=+—8H
7%%(28 548, ooo%m(_::*/\i
25,541,000 70 ) 2 RITEETEAR
B ARIERERER-

Annual Report 2019 3% 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

BEF B
RS P8B4 T 48 15 8 8 DA AN 2
MR E BB A B E A

s
B o
>t

BIEFFISTEBEZ AT

2019 2018
Y —EN\F
us$’000 Us$'000
T X5 FET
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —EREBIE 1218 A & Uk B
recovered after more than 12 months ZIBEEFBRAE 2,705 3,238

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

BEIEFTISTARE B FRRLAT

follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-)N\F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=
At 1 January w—A—H 3,238 3,263

Credited to consolidated income statement it A4E & Wz &
(Note 25) (FF3E25) (533) (25)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 2,705 3,238

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

KEZRLEMEHEERBE (Rt RE
SH AR R B AARE [ RO 48R AT ) B B an
T

ELEFEBARE

Accelerated tax depreciation

IEREINE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-)N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—A—H 4,655 4,526
Charged to consolidated income statement 4R & Wz & AI0K (293) (83)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 4,362 4,443
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

20

BIEFRSR (&)
EEFRBHEE

Other temporary differences

Hit B =4
2019 2018
—E—hE —E-NF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January R—A—H (1,417) (1,263)
Credited to consolidated income statement s+ A4z & W& (240) 58
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—¢H (1,657) (1,205)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$931,000 (2018: US$924,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries are intended to reinvest
to expand PRC markets.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred income tax
assets of US$372,000 (2018: US$490,000) in respect of the
unrecognised tax loss of US$1,489,000 (2018: US$1,959,000).
These tax losses for PRC corporate income tax purposes
will expire within five years. Tax losses of nil (2018: US$
nil), US$20,000 (2018: US$19,000), US$1,469,000 (2018:
US$1,940,000) will expire within one year, within two years and
within three to five years respectively.

WBIBRRECEMESRE AEEETH
WEAGBE -_EEN\F—A—HEBES
B)s F - BBk 0 R T ANBIIR B E B s A IR
10% M1 KGR M TEFORL o (R AR SR B =
ZETRBEMBARZREEE  BAEEH
ZHEME AR RFRFEMN 2 G E5E
RRATEER T B G oR B E - i k% &
g EEEREEAS R AE931,0003%
T (=2 — )\ : 924,000k Jr) o & B Hf
[N B AR E AR T EFEIER IR E AR
BHREMS-

BEFBREERABREH RIS R
o B B SR B0 ) IR B L P AR BB 0 B TK S
BIELHER AEEEBAERMKEIR
1,489,000% 7T (=2 — J\ % : 1,959,000
E00) ZAERBELEFSHEEA372,000
E56 (== — /\ & :490,000% JT) ° 5t 7
Bt¥(MEHMs &S RBEEBR
AFERNEB-RBEBETET(ZE—N
F£:ETXEIT) 20,000E 7T (ZF— N\F:
19,0003 7T) ~ 1,469,000 T (—E— N\
£ 11,940,000 70) 7 B i A —F A -
FRAUAE=ZERFRNIE-
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REMBHRRWE

21 REVENUE 21

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based food
additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-based
industrial products including modified starch, glucose syrup,
MSG, soda and acid. Revenues recognised for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 were US$357,857,000 and
US$356,772,000 respectively.

I &
REBRERBEELRRMLANMNE - £
ERAAREBRNIXES BEZMER
WmEERE KB HRITRER -BE=
T-NFRZF-NF+=ZA=+—HIE
FEER 2 W=D Bl A£357,857,000%E T
}2356,772,0003 T °

22 OTHER GAINS - NET 22 Hfttdrs— B8
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
Fxx FET
Net exchange losses PN EiEFRE (117) (289)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERELHEZ
held for sales ERBEE W - 307
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WER
plant and equipment H BB (113) (426)
Impairment of amount due from JFEE M B B 2 ) o R A
the non-controlling interest of ZFIERE
a subsidiary - (68)
Sales of scrap materials BRI 452 454
Government grant I 48 B 160 219
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 35) & —RHEB QA 2 ks
(BF3E35) 3,940 -
Impairment of goodwill (Note 9) B E (FTFE9) (3,580) -
Others EAh 351 262
1,093 459
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mEMBHRME

23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

23 RUEHESFZAX
SHERCA - $HE R B 2 R AT IR B X P

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BIEZEIZISMET
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FTEx FE
Changes in inventories and FEKCRBEERES

consumables used (Note 13) (HMHEE13) 234,769 238,143
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) | EEEN (M) 126 132
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T s R e 8 (P EE6) = 52
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 8) {57 P4 & &= # 1 (B 5£8) 145 -
Auditor's remuneration % BLRD Bl &

- Audit services —ZHR% 355 345
- Non-audit services — I B 4 4
Depreciation on property, M HERRETE

plant and equipment (Note 7) (K7x7) 20,244 18,429
Write-off of impairment of inventory Wis 17 R E (FFE13)

(Note 13) 7 30
Reversal of impairment of inventory BEFERME (H:E13)

(Note 13) (93) (400)
Expense relating to short-term lease HGHHEERENRY 30 -
Operating leases expenses in respect of BRAEELTH BER

leasehold land, warehouses and offices MRABELERO X - 316
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EERAFZ (M:E28) 39,053 35,717
Reversal of loss allowance of FEE 5 EHEE

trade receivables (Note 14) BEED (KE14) (10) (13)
Technical support fee (Note 34(b)) Rtz & & (M 3E34(b)) 2,156 2,180
Travelling expenses ERAZ 1,654 1,629
Transportation expenses B 9,223 8,262
Advertising expenses BERX 4,069 3,898
Other expenses HhF X 27,259 26,641
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution 5 & Ak A - 856 & 5 84

expenses and administrative expenses X RITHF X 25 338,991 335,365
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REMBHRRWE

24 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 24 M¥(XH) BA-28
2019 2018
—E2-NF —ZE-N\F
Us$'000 uUs$'000
Fxx F=7T
Bank interest income |ITHBUA 768 834
Interest income from an associate RKE—EBEARZ
FEWA 5 8
Unwinding of discount of AR R L At FE UK IE 2
other receivables (Note) IR (M3E) 98 87
Finance income B U A 871 929
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITIEEFR SHX (1,107) (1,106)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEBNERX (94) -
Less: amounts capitalised BEEREEEARNL
on qualifying assets (Note 7) FIE (fFFE7) 283 274
Finance costs B (918) (832)
Finance (costs)/income — net B () A —F5 (47) 97

Note: B 3 -

RZZE—tF-_A=-+=-8 K (BFE)BH
BERARE—RBIYE=FFIL—AHFH A
3,400,0003 7T 2 (K15 &7 & 5 B W % - R
EREE - RRHIN T —LFETK

On 22 February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to dispose
of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant at a consideration
of US$3,400,000. The transaction was completed in 2017.

According to the payment schedule in the agreement, the BEZBE2ARERAR RZ2E—-—NAF+=
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2019 of US$1,360,000 (2018: A=1+—BZHAKREELH#1,360,000F T (=
US$2,040,000) is repayable in 2020. The balance is non-interest T — \4F:2,040,000%€ L) BER S -_TFE
bearing. BoEHRRE -
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mEMBHRME

25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25 F@ERAX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated ) 2 IR F AT ER TS AR A &
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing B EMEBERZRITHETHE

in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income REre W kW 2 TS & 5iE
statement represents:

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

us$’000 Us$'000

SEEZTD FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") EREH 4,681 4,638
Under-provision of income tax WMAFEMSEHREBERETR

in previous years 80 -

Total current tax BIHAFI TE 42 %8 4,761 4,638

Deferred income tax (Note 20) ERIERTEH (FFE20) (533) (25)

4,228 4,613
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REMBHRRWE

25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

25

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major

subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

FRris RS ()

7R E2 [B1 Bk P 15 154 BIDE 1) 69 AT 15 750 2 41 5 4R
AAEETEMERRBREKARER
EMEENERRATR &P

2019 2018
—E-h#EF —T-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
Tt FET
Profit before tax & 15 A A1 19,813 22,007
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% B15% 2 BHEFTE 2B
(2018: 15%) (ZE—N\F:15%) 2,972 3,301
Tax effects of different tax rates TRABEZ MG E (290) 2,953
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ARz B 958 480
Income not subject to tax BARBUA 591 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BAZAIARERNEER
losses (83) (2,572)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 80 -
Tax losses for which no deferred income WEBERBETEMSHEE
tax asset was recognised 2% &8 - 451
Tax charge I W 4,228 4,613

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam

The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the
subsidiary’s investment license.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

(iv) Taiwan

The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Taiwan is 20% (2018:17%).
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27

REMBRRMEE
26 DIVIDENDS 26 B2
A final dividend of US$4,042,000 that relates to the year ended EREBE=T - N \F+ZA=+—8H1
31 December 2018 was declared on 14 May 2019 and was paid FE2ZAHKE4,042,000E TER=-F
in June 2019 (2018: US$6,750,000). —NERAATHBEERRR_Z—-NF
NA TR (ZF—/\% : 6,750,000
TT) e
The interim dividends paid in 2019 was US$6,080,000 (0.4 RE-AEFIXNHFPHEE A
US cents per share) (2018: US$4,532,000, 0.298 US cents 6,080,000% 7T (F%0.4ZFEA) (ZZE—N
per share). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 % :4,532,000% 7T (G 20.298%& 1) ) »
December 2019 of 0.214 US cents per share, amounting to a BREERREFAG LR 2 AMHIED
total dividend of US$3,259,000, is to be proposed for approval BHE_Z-—NWFT+A=T—BLFEN
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated KEBRE ASR0214FN WEBEE
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. 3,259,000% 7T - ZF4R & M Mz I & R
BRZIE AR B o
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$’000
FER FE
Interim dividend paid of 0.4 US cents AR AR B AR
(2018: 0.298 US cents) per LimA%0.43 L
ordinary share (ZZT—=N\F:
0.298%1l) 6,080 4,532
Proposed final dividend of 0.214 US cents  #JE & HiR% B &A%
(2018: 0.265 US cents) per EiBA%0.214% 1L
ordinary share (ZE—NF:
0.265%1l) 3,259 4,042
9,339 8,574
EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 BEERF
(a) Basic (a) EXR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BREXRBRERNRFHEE ARG
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the i FIBR A AE BT E BRI
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHHETE
during the year.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Profit attributable to owners of the NAEVEB AR & F
Company (US$'000) (F%7T) 15,563 14,285
Weighted average number of BBITL BARE INE
ordinary shares in issue EHE (T’
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BREXRETN
(US cents per share) (FREMN) 1.02 0.94
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mEMERRHE
27 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 27 BEERT ()
(b) Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per HE_Z-NAFERZZT—NF+=
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years A=+—HIFE BARATESHET
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. A WEREERFHEGREARF
EI
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 ERBRAMAX (BEEFEHEM)
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-)N\F
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE - EH&kEM 30,770 28,579
Bonus TEAT 2,108 1,868
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  E{RK& 5K A&
— ERE MG E 3,079 2,783
Other employee benefits HitfE 8T 3,096 2,487
39,053 35,717
29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 29 EREEFIRE

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group

operates defined benefit pension plans for

its employees in

Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day.

RIFBESEEARRE AEESER -
ZENF+ A=+ —HIEAEAE
MEERHTERNEBAREF 8 -ZER
BARBR _ZFZN\F+_A=+—RZ
R 4 HA Ko 1% AR 75 B B AT 7S 8L A B3R R
T HFER -

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

US$'000 US$'000

T F=

As at 1 January w—A—H 1,478 1,447
Current service cost BDEA AR 7% 7 % 335 110
Payments (BN (399) (79)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 1,414 1,478
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mEMBHRME

29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 29 EB#iEFIE{E ()

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FEANEEBE/RENT:
2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —T—)\F
Discount rate g & 9% 9%
Salary growth rate HeERX 3.0% - 7.9% 3.0% -7.9%
Expected years of service remaining T8 HA 0 84 AR 75 4F IR 13-17 yearsfF 14-17 years4F
Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective BEH-_ZEEZNF-A—BRERZHEE
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to MtERBE AREEREYEEERE
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its REBZEEMHERBETEERER R
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment EHZEHAE AEEREEMNRE
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The F-ZEHFRIAZNEERRBESR
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when MR -

they are due.
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REMBHRRWE

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFERIRER (FRELTFGH (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E ) E3831G - NF (HBEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE REH)FO (B622GE)REEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF THRAAREZHE)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHRAEZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief BREERSMITHRAE ZFHBED
executive is set out below: mr
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BE-ZE-hAF+=-H=+—HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement  or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
RESRE
EBALNTY
Bxm  EMELAREH
i EERENER BUREAGE MEBRBEAD
Name of Director j £33 Be (fizta) mERL (Bt3th) Efs BRGNS At
US$'000 US$'000 USS'000 US$'000 US$'000 USs'000 US$'000
FEn R T£n Fin R F£n FEn
Executive Director $17E2
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEELE 1 343 467 16 - - 827
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) 15 ¥ 424 (MizEc) - 380 454 16 - - 850
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 184 327 16 - - 527
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou ) bt - 181 327 16 - - 524
Non-executive Director FHUTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABELE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRERAE - - - 16 - - 16
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray REkmaE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen fAfkEsE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BRESLE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total ag 9 1,088 1,575 176 - - 2,848
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mEMBHRME

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EXRTRES (FELTGH (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E ) 583831 - NF (HBEFF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE REH)HO (F622GE)REEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF THRAREZERE) (8)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHAEZ#HME (])
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BHE-_T-N\F+-_HA=+—HL
-
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
RESEE
ERARAL
Exm  AKELAEH
Fika EHRENET RINEME WEMRBEAR
Name of Director 232 #e (Fi#a) WL (Ht3tb) e Bl At At
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
e F£n T e e T AE
Executive Director H17E2
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BHEEEE 1 343 429 17 - - 790
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) 15 ¥ 24 (MizEc) 1 380 416 17 - - 814
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 181 300 17 - - 498
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou [2p:Y bt - 181 300 17 - - 498
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BBERE - - - 1 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRERE 2 - - 1 - - 18
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BERERLE 2 - - 1 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray B EE 2 - - 1 - - 18
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa (Note (i) BEL LA (M) 1 - - 8 - - 9
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AEERE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong (Note (i) 3% 8 % 4 ( Mz (i) - - - 4 - - 4
Total 2% 12 1,085 1,445 176 - - 2,718
Note: M 5E

(i) Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018.

(i) Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 22
October 2018.

(i)  HEBELCBHEARRBLIER
TERE BT N\FEAZ+=
HeER-

(i) EHEBALECERZEIRAATE

NIENTEE BT -N\F+A
—t+—HBA-
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REMBHRRWE

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(continued)

EERIRER (FRLFIGH (5

622E )E38ME AT (HBEEF
SEH)NG ($£622GE)REFHEL
THAAREZKE) (8)

(A)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to

EERGRITRAEBZHE (&)

Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESRERESZIRE ESREEAQTH
(FRAFAAREMBARZES) HRBAREHAEN
BEXAAENZANE HttRBCBXARER RS8R st @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NF —Z-N\F “E-NF —E-N\F ZE-NF —E-N\F
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
T FET T FET Fxr FET
2,848 2,718 - - 2,848 2,718

Note:

(a) Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind include travelling
allowance.

(o) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate

disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has
been made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2018: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2018: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2018: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 34, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2018: same).

EERIRES (FEAFGEH (5
622F )E383E AT (HEBEEEF
S28H)HH ($622GE)REFEL
mRAAREZEE) (8)

(B) EZRMKEF
RBE-ZE-AF+-_A=+—H
IFFE TEMEERREEREEAR
BEE:Y61-PADEE 330 2700
B EARARER (ZF—N\F:
R -

() ESZHRLEA
REZE-_Z—hAhF+=-A=+—8
HFEE TEAESIHRIEET
(ZZ—NF:HERA) -

(D) FERMEEREMEE=HFRMHN
RE
REBEZE-_ZT—-NF+ZA=+—H
LEFE VERRBRESREMMA
FEZFRHEREBE(ZZ—N\F 4
@) e

() AEUES ZZFEBEHNEA
ERENZEESNARERRAS
BANER EERREMRZNE
#
RBE-Z-AF+-_A=+—H
LFE TENER XRSEFE
BEEABBEZEEETNERE
ERSITAELNER EEFRR
Hihz 5 (ZZ—N\F:8R[) -

(F) ESRXE RPSAGHTHWEKRE
=
RO FE34RT IR R B N M ARFE S
REFRERERE - RRBALEET L
HAEEERERMARRNEEE
ERMEREERAEENEMERX
X5 RHIAHN(ZE-NF: A
[l)
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e MR

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EERIRER (FEBAVGH (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 6225 53831 AT (HEBEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE SFH) )N (F622GE ) REFE L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF THRAREZWEE) (8)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals (G) EEBEMEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest AEBAFENRAEEZRMNE AL
in the Group for the year included four (2018: four) BENE(ZT—N\F:WE)HT
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the B BENMESER EXZHMHH
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the R REERNEMNGT -2 (ZF
remaining one (2018: one) individual during the year is as —NF:—F)ALTZHMET :
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERx FxEx
Wages, basic salaries and I8 JEH MOERE
allowances 104 107
Bonus B4 34 27
Pension costs — defined RRE KA
contribution plans —E R M E 2 2
Other employee benefits HftE SR = -
140 136
The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within BTITATZHEERRATEHE :

the following band:

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
US$130,001 — US$155,000 130,001% 7T
- 155,000% ¢ 1 1
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mEMBHRME

31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

31 GeEReRERME

(a) EBELEZEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 F%=x FEx
Profit before income tax B FT 15 %0 Al i A 19,813 22,007
Adjustments for: MLATIER %
- Finance income — W BUA (871) (929)
— Finance costs — BB 918 832
— Share of post tax loss/ —EhEEE A A
(profit) of an associate BRI ER
O ) 929 (44)
— Write-off of impairment — T ERE
of inventories 7 30
— Reversal of impairment —BEFERE
of inventories (93) (400)
— Depreciation of — W BE KRB 7
property, plant and e
equipment 20,244 18,429
— Reversal of impairment —EBREZER 14
loss of trade BB R R
receivables (10) (13)
— Amortisation of —EEEERE 9
intangible assets 126 132
— Amortisation of land — T {h R R 8 6
use rights = 52
— Amortisation of right- —FREEESN 8
of-use assets 145 -
— Impairment of amount — FE U — A B B
due from the non- NAElZ IEER
controlling interest of I 2R E
a subsidiary - 68
— Loss on disposal of —HEME HWE K 22
property, plant and wEzEE
equipment 113 426
- Gain on disposal of —HEFELHEZ
assets held for sale BEWE - (307)
— Gain on disposal of a —HE—H 35
subsidiary (oY NE g (3,940) -
— Impairment of goodwill —HERE 22 3,580 -
40,131 40,283
Change in working capital HBESBE
(excluding the effects of (Ret4ralRBESE
exchange differences on ZEHEREE)
consolidation)
— Inventories -EE (4,640) (7,864)
— Trade receivables, KB SRR
prepayments and TERTRRIA R E A
other receivables FEW R IA (598) (5,043)
— Trade payables, accruals —“EREZEXR:
and other payables EEtE R R EAM
N L] (6,955) 3,298
— Net changes in balances —HEBENA
with related companies HEer o BE) TR 197 (1,218)
Cash generated from E Y-k
operations 28,135 29,456
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REMBHRRWE

31
CASH FLOWS (continued)

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

31

ReBReRERME (&)

(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) XBELEZHS (H)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds TR BHeRERN HEWE W
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BREBEHEZFAERERRE:
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —T-N\F
uss$’000 Us$'000
Tt FET
Net book amount (Note 7) FREFE (MIFE7) 116 512
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BEREH2
plant and equipment (Note 22) EtE (Mi522) (113) (426)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WMERREZ
plant and equipment Fri§ 5018 3 86
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) EBEXFHEZIYR

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

AEHIIRE 25 2 B FE
ST R AETS) SRR -

Net debt B EE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
us$’000 us$'000
T X5 FET
Cash and cash equivalents RHeERREEED 41,127 34,215
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ $R{TfEFR—R—FRNEE
one year (24,748) (20,469)
Bank borrowings — repayable after RITER R —FREE
one year (15,376) (15,697)
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE-BHILS (111) -
Lease liabilities — non-current portion & & & — JEENHAEE (3,016) -
Net debt BB FE (2,124) (1,951)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 41,127 34,215
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEFRRE—EEH =X (14,343) (6,365)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BERBE - FEFE (28,908) (29,801)
Net debt BB FE (2,124) (1,951)
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e B RME

31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 REBERERME(HE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) EBEFHEZYR(E)

Liabilities from
financing activities

REMETBZEE
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion
R-FREE R-FRIH HEaE- HESE-
ZRITEE ZRITEE B3R FEREEH D
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'ooo
TEL TEn TEL TEL
Net cash as at R-ZE-N\E
1 January 2018 —A-BZzHELFE (15,906) (19,491) - -
Cash flows RBenE 6,733 (7,502) - -
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JMNEFHZ - - - -
Other non-cash movement HEmFReEH (11,296) 11,296 - -
Net debt as at R-ZE-N\E
31 December 2018 +=B=+-8
ZEBRE (20,469) (15,697) - -
Recognised on adoption of REMNEBH SRS
HKFRS16 (Note 2.2) AR 165 B IR
(M#2.2) - - 166 2,315
Net debt as at R-ZE-hE
1 January 2019 —R-AZEBRE (20,469) (15,697) 166 2,315
Cash flows RERE 5,417 (9,325) (324) -
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEFHE (50) - - -
Acquisition - leases WE-1HE - - 725 701
Termination - leases mIE-1HE - - (550) -
Other non-cash movement HthkRe# (9,646) 9,646 9 -
Net debt as at R-ZE-hE
31 December 2019 +=B=+-8
ZEBRE (24,748) (15,376) 111 3,016
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REMBHRRWE

32

33

34

COMMITMENTS 32

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

&I
REBMAREHRCFTNEREEZER
S HWT

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-)N\F
us$’000 us$'000
Fxx F=T
Contracted but not provided for BRI EREE
Property, plant and equipment Y- B MR E 3,587 2,493
Investment in an associate (Note 11) REERE2IKE
(HEzE11) 112 112
3,699 2,605
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 BRAR

At 31 December 2019, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$128,600,000
(2018: US$128,600,000), of which US$78,753,000 (2018:
US$79,067,000) has not been utilised.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

34

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31
December 2019:

Related party
BFHEAL

RZE—NAF+_A=+—8 -&x275
HiEB AT A%0128,600,000% 7T ( —F—/\
£ : 128,600,000 70 ) 2 SRITRE A IR L&
R H 78,753,000 (=ZF — )\ F:
79,067,000% 7T ) i AR BV ©

FREALESD
REBESEERTRERFG EREE
RIGRMEL BEXRE BXRKEXRE 15
SR A BN A BKIESRLE  BR
A BXOREE  BRELE BB K
T BREL L RGRIEL L

(@ TEBHRAR=_ZT—NF+=ZA
—t+—HZzBEBEALREERE
E R ME :

Relationship with the Group
HASEER

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan")

A substantial shareholder of the Company

AL ERGERAR ([4BK3)) ARAMEBRE
Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Group
EMBERERAER QA REBEMBERT

Capron Group Limited
Capron Group Limited
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mEMBHRME

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 FRAEALES ()
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EARSEBPEKBERETHE
out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as ABBEATRZWT:

follows:

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-NF

Note Us$’000 Us$'000
ks FEx FE

Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan ARERAEEED (i 7,410 8,687

Technical support fee paid to By - SES- XN ¥

Taiwan Vedan XERE (i) 2,156 2,180

Agency commission income A & 2 IR ST &Y

received from Taiwan Vedan RIBESUWA (i) 2 2

Notes: R

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) AABEERE MABEATE
the related party were conducted in the normal course of H2HERTCATEKARFTR
business in accordance with the underlying terms. BABBR IR ETT -

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i ARFREERAR ZEXZEAR
transactions were carried out in the normal course of ¥BBRERET W ERBEE R
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the R B o
terms of underlying agreements.

(c) Key management compensation () FEEEAEWHS

The compensation paid or payable to key management, HESRECHHEMNTIESE A

including all executive directors and senior management, B (BEMBHTESRESREIE

for employee services is shown below. ) EHENE SR o

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FxE
Salaries and other short-term e kHEMEHEEREF
employee benefits 3,591 3,469
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REMBHRRWE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34 AREALES (&)
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) EHEEBEEATZERER
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following RZZE—NF+ZA=+—0 &%
significant balances with the related parties: EHEEEAT 2 EELEHIOT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
iik=3 TEx FET
Current: BNER -
Amount due from FEU & ER ST 2 FRIB
Taiwan Vedan (i) 954 1,191
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan B EBKS 2 RIE (i) (1,329) (1,391)
Loan to an associate BTHBMERNTZER (ii) 122 120
Amount due to Capron Group JF& 15f Capron Group
Limited Limited 2 # I8 (iii) (22) -
Notes: i
(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest- (i) BERSHATE &Y B ERE -
free and have no fixed terms of payment. SfERERETEERE-
(iiy  The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at 4% (i) HTHERARZERAEIER X
per annum, denominated in US$ and is repayable on 20 FRRABFT B AETEHE - WA
May 2021. RZEZ—FRAZ-t+HEE-
(i)  The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured, (i) E2Capron Group LimitedZ &8 &
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within AR B LLETTETE WA
one year. R—FANEE-
35 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 35 HE—FRNELR

On 26 January 2019, Ordino Investments Pte Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to sell
all of its shares of Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. with a cash consideration of US$1. The transaction was
completed on 29 January 2019.
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mEMBHRME

35 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 35 HE—MMELAT ()

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposed PHEZHBARNEERAMcFEEE
subsidiary as the date of disposal are as follows: Ra@EERWT:

Us$'000

FE

Consideration receivable: EWRRE:
Cash consideration (Note) e RE (M) -
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 AR 3K N H b jE W k18 (17)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY (6)
Trade and other payable JEFTE 5 BR 5k K B b FE 5 5RIR 151
Carrying amounts of net liabilities disposed EHEZEEFHEERE 128
Exchange reserve released Bk 2 E R RS 3,707
Non-controlling interest for disposal of a subsidiary BRI H & — BB Q7 Z IEE Rz 105
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 22) HE—MBWEAR &= (ME22) 3,940
Note: M 5
The cash consideration for the sale of the subsidiary is US$1. HEMBRARIZEERERIET

Annual Report 2019 3 217



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

36

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

At the middle of March 2020, following the outbreak of
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“the COVID-19 outbreak”) in
early 2020 in China and spread over the world, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across all operation sites of the Group
postponement of work resumption after the Chinese New
Year holiday in China offices, certain level of restrictions and
controls over the travelling of people and traffic arrangements,
heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements
in factories and offices and encouraged social distancing, etc.
Among the major markets of Vedan, the impacts in the PRC,
the US and Japan are expected to be more serious while the
impact on its largest market, Vietnam, is considered to be
comparatively low. The Group is still in the process of assessing
the impacts and is currently unable to estimate the quantitative
impacts to the Group.
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mEMBHRME

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

ERAREERER

FAFIREARRAEMRED

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
Note Us$‘'000 Us$'o00
M & FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBREIZEKE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REERF 2 RE 6,308 6,308
Loan to an associate BTBERNRICER 122 -
Loan to a subsidiary LTHBRARIZER 1,200 -
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 173,660 172,338
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i N EENEIE S 53,060 39,245
Amount due from a related party BB EEALTHRIA 18 -
Short-term loan to an associate BFHBERNAZNEER - 120
Short-term loan to a subsidiary BTHBARZ EHER - 1,200
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT R & E Ath fE MR IR 658 679
Short-term bank deposits RHRITEXR 1,806 2,839
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 4,844 3,022
Total current assets RBEELE 60,386 47,105
Total assets EERE 234,046 219,443
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners of KRARHEE AEILER
the Company
Share capital A& A 15,228 15,228
Reserves EE (Note(a))
(FFEE()) 212,379 199,803
Total equity B 227,607 215,031
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REMBHRRWE

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 FAFIEEARKERBEREE (/)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) AARNEEEER (H)

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—~H
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-)N\F
Note US$‘000 Us$'000
Bt 5 TEx F=ET
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities =R
Accruals and other payables FERTE R & E b BT IR 3,117 3,017
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,993 -
Current income tax liabilities BNERFR G B & - 4
Amount due to a related party JET B BAE A T RIB 1,329 1,391
Total current liabilities REBEEHERE 6,439 4,412
Total equity and liabilities EEREEER 234,046 219,443
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board ARREEBBREEEEEN 2%
of Directors on 24 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf. FZAZ+HEERTHTIALTRESE
=,
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
BEEE B
Director Director
EF EZE

220 vVedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk & BIES (308 ) AR A 7)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 *LFREARKRFEREE (1)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) AAREEEER (H)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company B 5 (@) N 2 B o 1
Share
premium and Exchange Retained
other reserve reserve earnings Total
RO BRER
Hip e ER#E REBER B
us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FxET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-N\E—HA—H 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
Comprehensive loss ZHEEE
Loss for the year N EEIE - - (7,704) (7,704)
Other comprehensive income Ht 2@ A
Currency translation difference [ X Z=%8 - (85) - (85)
Total comprehensive loss 2HBELEHE - (85) (7,704) (7,789)
Dividends paid BT E - - (11,282) (11,282)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+ZA=+—H 194,098 (111) 5,816 199,803
At 1 January 2019 R-ZTE—hF—HA—H 194,098 (111) 5,816 199,803
Comprehensive loss 2HEE
Profit for the year ZNCER | - - 22,599 22,599
Other comprehensive income H2 @K A
Currency translation difference  [& % %= %8 - 99 - 99
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBRAE 194,098 99 22,599 22,698
Dividends paid B E - - (10,122) (10,122)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-A=+—H 194,098 (12) 18,293 212,379
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